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From: Tom Flynn tomflynn@sonic.net
Subject: Fwd: Lawson's Landing Question

Date: 26 June 2020 at 11:05
To: Peter Prows pprows@briscoelaw.net

Peter, 

See below. 

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Alber, Scott" <SAlber@marincounty.org>
Subject: RE: Lawson's Landing Question
Date: June 26, 2020 at 10:42:16 AM PDT
To: "Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal" <Stephanie.Rexing@coastal.ca.gov>, "Nunes, Tom" <TNunes@marincounty.org>, 
"Weber, Jason" <JWeber@marincounty.org>
Cc: "Manna, Jeannine@Coastal" <Jeannine.Manna@coastal.ca.gov>, "Robert W. Hayes" 
<RHayes@RWHAssociates.com>, Tom Flynn <tomflynn@sonic.net>, Justin Lawson-Battenfeld 
<justin.lawsonbattenfeld@gmail.com>

14 CCR § 1273.08
§ 1273.08. Dead-end Roads.
(a) The maximum length of a dead-end road, including all dead-end roads 
accessed from that dead-end road, shall not exceed the following cumulative 
lengths, regardless of the number of parcels served:
parcels zoned for less than one acre - 800 feet
parcels zoned for 1 acre to 4.99 acres - 1,320 feet
parcels zoned for 5 acres to 19.99 acres - 2,640 feet
parcels zoned for 20 acres or larger - 5,280 feet
All lengths shall be measured from the edge of the road surface at the intersection 
that begins the road to the end of the road surface at its farthest point. Where a 
dead-end road crosses areas of differing zoned parcel sizes requiring different
length limits, the shortest allowable length shall apply.
(b) See 14 CCR § 1273.05 for dead-end road turnaround requirements.
Note: Authority cited: Section 4290, Public Resources Code. Reference: Sections 
4290 and 4291, Public Resources Code.

Scott D. Alber, PE, EFO, CFO, FM, MIFireE
BATTALION CHIEF/FIRE MARSHAL
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__________________________________________________
Stephanie R. Rexing  
District Supervisor
North Central Coast District
California Coastal Commission
(415)-904-5260
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Environmental Action Committee of West Marin
PO Box 609 Point Reyes, California 94956

www.eacmarin.org 415.663.9312

November 28, 2017

Dear Jeannine, 

I want to follow up on the November 8 hearing.  There were a couple of statements made by staff 
that were inaccurate and I would like to correct them for the record.

First, I believe that you stated in answer to a question from the Commission that the EIR covered 
the Lawson's Landing Center.  In fact, there is no reference to a Lawson’s Landing Center or any 
of its components in the EIR, as this table from the Final EIR’s Project Description shows.  I 
have also attached the entire Project Description to the email in which I am sending this letter. 

Table 3-1 Proposed Recreation Facilities
Facility Location Time of 

Implementation
Six Concrete Block Restrooms Main Meadow & Sand Point 1-7 years
Water Faucets Main Meadow 1-7 years
Restroom and Shower Facility Main Meadow 1-7 years
Relocation and Expansion of 
Existing Boat House Sand Point 5-10 years
Centralized Boat Storage Sand Point 5-10 years
Sewage Treatment System and Lines, 
and Access Road Sand Point and Dunes 1-5years
Fire Hydrants Main Meadow 1-5 years
Water Storage Tanks (2) Main Meadow 1-5 years
Reopening of Sewage 
Disposal StationsMain Meadow and Sand Point [1 year?]
Entrance Gate House Main Meadow 1-5 years
Site Access Improvements Main Meadow 1-5 years
Lighting South Ranch 1-5 years
Signage Main Meadow and Sand Point
Road “pullouts” Dillon Beach Road
Pedestrian Trail System Main Meadow 1-2 years
Educational Program Main Meadow 1 year

Second, in responding to another question from the Commission, Dan Carl said that Staff was 
unaware of any plan for 470 campsites.  I am also attaching EAC’s Exhibit 1, which we thought 
had been given to Staff, and which consists of communications between the Applicant and Staff 
in which the Applicant states his intention of having 473 campsites in Phase 2 and agreed to 
staff’s suggestion that this Phase 2 be left out of the Amendment.



Environmental Action Committee of West Marin
PO Box 609 Point Reyes, California 94956

www.eacmarin.org 415.663.9312

Lastly, I want to let you know that while EAC agrees with Staff about which buildings in Area 6 
were legally developed and which were not, we do not accept that any undeveloped areas 
adjacent to legally developed building are also legally developed.  We will present arguments on 
this point at a later date.

We look forward to a new Amendment for a wastewater system that does not encroach on 
ESHA.

Thank you for your work on this important project. I hope your Christmas and maternity leave 
are peaceful and happy. 

All the best,

Catherine Caufield

















Environmental Action Committee of West Marin 
PO Box 609 Point Reyes, California 94956 

www.eacmarin.org  415.663.9312

Stephanie Rexing 
Coastal Commission 
Suite 2000 
SF CA 94105-2219 

September 15, 2018 

Re: Lawson's Landing 3rd Amendment application 

Dear Stephanie,

This letter is to follow up on my 9/27/18 memo to you and Jeannine on unpermitted relocation of 
the fuel bunker.  As my memo makes clear, the fuel bunker was relocated to Area 6 ESHA in 
violation of an explicit prohibition in Special Condition 2 of the July 2011 CDP. Documents 
submitted to you by Lawson's Landing show that this relocation was accomplished after the CDP 
was approved. The relocation to ESHA also occurred without required County, State or Coastal 
Commission permits.   

The fuel bunker must be removed from ESHA and mitigation must be required for the damage 
done in moving it there.

As you know, the Commissioners were very clear that no future application for an amendment to 
the Lawson's Landing CDP should contain proposals to develop ESHA, in particular the 
Commission focused on ESHA in Area 6.  It is inconceivable that the Commission, or the public, 
would accept approval of an unpermitted development in Area 6 ESHA that took place in 
violation of the CDP approved by the Commission.  Removal and mitigation of the fuel bunker’s 
impact should be a key part of any new amendment application.

Thank you for all your work on this important coastal site. 

Regards,

Catherine Caufield 
cc: Jeannine Manna 



Email: 9.21.18 

Dear Jeannine and Stephanie, 

Before we meet at Lawson's Landing this weekend, I wanted to address the 
issue of the Lawson's Landing Center.  There is no indication at present whether 
they still intend to build such a center, or where. The key issue for the 
Environmental Action Committee of West Marin is that Area 6 be protected as 
ESHA, except for those parts of Area 6 that are proved to have been legally 
developed.  The wastewater system has been pulled back so that it is restricted 
to the section of Area 6 that in my letter of Dec. 11, 2017, I identified as Area Z, 
which staff has described as being part of the sand quarry and therefore 
considered legally permitted.

As you have also noted, though, the Quarry Reclamation Plan referenced under 
CDP 90-15 states that roads used during the quarry operation must be reclaimed 
when ranching operations cease and road use is discontinued.  EAC has argued 
that there are now no ranching or quarrying operations in Area 6, and that 
therefore Area Z (as opposed to Sand Haul Road itself) can no longer be 
considered to be a farm road. Rather it must be recognized as ESHA and 
restored.

However, if Area Z is still (somehow) considered a farm road, then it could be 
used to housed the underground septic facilities.  Obviously, it could not be used 
for aboveground facilities since they would hamper its use as a road.  If at some 
future date, Area Z is no longer considered to be a farm road, it wold have to be 
restored, but that would not necessarily conflict with existing underground septic 
facilities. 

Thus, we could understand the logic of placing septic facilities underground in 
Area Z, but certainly not any aboveground development such as a Lawson's 
Landing Center.

We also reiterate our arguments  in the Dec. 11, 2017 that Area Y & X are also 
ESHA and cannot be developed. 

I’m attaching our Dec. 11, 2017 letter, which contains a drawing showing Areas 
X, Y & Z. 

I’m looking forward to seeing you both tomorrow and to meeting Dante. 

Regards,
Catherine  











November 3, 2018

Stephanie Rexing
California Coastal Commission 
45 Fremont Street, Suite 2000 
San Francisco, CA 94105

Re: Lawson's Landing Truck Shed Area 6

Dear Stephanie,

In his letter dated Sept. 20, 2018, Peter Prows claims that a 1972 photograph from the California 
Coastal Records website provides evidence that the truck shed “area” had been graded in 1972.
In fact, the area that he has highlighted in that photo is the location of the current employee rest
area.  If you compare the 1972 and 1979 photos, you can see that the truck shed area is quite a bit 
further back (to the east) and was not developed in 1972.

In addition, as you are aware §27400 of Prop 20 states that “On or after February 1, 1973 any 
person wishing to perform any development within the permit area shall obtain a permit 
authorizing such development from the regional commission.”

In short, the argument that the Truck Shed area was legally developed does not stand up.

Sincerely,
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Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

From: Future of DB <bonnie@futureofdb.com>
Sent: Friday, October 4, 2019 11:34 AM
To: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal; Pfeifer, Sara@Coastal
Cc: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal
Subject: Re: Lawson's Landing, parking proposal
Attachments: gatehouse.jpg

Dear Stephanie, 
 
I do have an additional comment about this. Willy reached out to me and showed me a clearer 
version of the proposed parking area. We still have concerns and I've marked up photograph to 
illustrate.  
 
In the photograph attached, please note the size of a typical vehicle relative to the entrance area. 
These RVs are sometimes pulling additional recreational vehicles (Jeeps, boats, etc) and they queue 
up outside the gate to enter. To mitigate back-ups, a multi-lane system has been proposed that 
utilizes the existing, but not used western gate. RVs, campers, etc need adequate space to maneuver 
in this area.  
 
Thank you. I know everyone is trying to get this project done! 
 
Bonnie Smetts 

On 9/30/19 3:40 PM, Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal wrote: 
Hi Bonnie, 
Thanks for the input. That is a draft proposal that we put together in trying to understand all the
competing needs, wants, and requirements for that area, public access parking being one of
them. Nothing is set in stone as to where any one thing is going to be located, that arrangement was
just one possibility being considering in trying to get to resolution on this complicated project. We really
appreciate your perspective on the Traffic Management issues, and are exploring options with the
Lawsons to assure that traffic does not get backed up.  
 
I will add your comments to the correspondence file. Please also don’t hesitate to reach out if you have
further concerns or want to discuss. Thanks! 
 
~Stephanie 
 
From: Future of DB <bonnie@futureofdb.com>
Sent:Monday, September 30, 2019 1:44 PM
To: Pfeifer, Sara@Coastal <Sara.Pfeifer@coastal.ca.gov>
Cc: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal <Stephanie.Rexing@coastal.ca.gov>; Manna, Jeannine@Coastal
<Jeannine.Manna@coastal.ca.gov>
Subject: Lawson's Landing, parking proposal 
  
Dear Sara, 
 
Catherine Caufield just emailed me a copy of the Lawson’s Landing Draft Proposal 
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Alternative 1 that details the move of five free parking spaces from the original position 
to outside the gatehouse. I am usually very professional and measured in my 
communications with the Coastal Commission, but I've gotta say here...are you kidding? 
 
The proposed area is and has been used as a waiting area where visitors briefly park 
and walk to the gatehouse to check in. This area is key to the improvements that have 
been made on traffic flow. By having this area available, it keeps the single lane 
entering the campground flowing for visitors already checked in. While this space helps 
mitigate the back-ups, there are still times when traffic makes it impossible for residents 
to leave their driveways. This is the case even with the improvements with the 
reservation system. 
 
An important aspect of mitigating the traffic issues is having all parking located within 
the gate inside the campground. If parking needs to be moved to a nearby roadside 
location, why not at the base of Sand Haul Road? 
 
If this area outside the gate is used for day parking, it would reverse the success of the 
Traffic Management Plan. 
 
As always, thank you for you work.  
 
Bonnie Smetts 
 
Concerned Citizens of Dillon Beach 
bonnie@futureofdb.com 
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Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

From: Scott Miller <handmadeinmarin@gmail.com>
Sent: Friday, February 14, 2020 9:31 AM
To: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal; Manna, Jeannine@Coastal
Subject: Lawson's Landing Entry Gate Improvement

Hi Stephanie and Jeannine,
After all of these years of talks and drawings and plans of expensive upgrades to the entry gate I am still left

wondering, “Why not just open the other gate?”
The logistics are incredibly simple. Open it. Try it. If it doesn’t work, Close it.
Cost analysis:
If the lock works: $0
If the lock is stuck: 30” bolt cutters ($32.27) + replacement lock ($6.55) = $38.82 + free shipping from Amazon.

For less than $50, traffic capacity at the gate could be doubled. Worst case scenario (total failure, somehow makes
things worse): Close it again.

Project Plans:
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Thank you for your continuing work on what seems to be a never ending project.
Scott
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Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

From: Bonnie Smetts <futureofdb@yahoo.com>
Sent: Wednesday, March 4, 2020 2:12 PM
To: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal
Cc: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal
Subject: Thank You. LL Site Visit

Dear Jeannine, 
 
Thank you for including us in the Lawson's Landing site visit yesterday. We wanted to let you know that we 
agree that the proposed placement of the five free parking places is the viable solution. Lawson's Landing is 
actively and successfully managing their check-ins and congestion at the gate and we are satisfied that there will 
not be additional problems created by the parking places. According to Justin Lawson, having designated hours 
for the spots will help, especially on the difficult early morning low tides days. We believe it’s important that 
the parking spots be far enough away from the West side gate so that it can still be used in the future to improve 
traffic flow. From our understanding there is no reason that it can’t be used.  
 
Your input on the TMP and LL's efforts have really made a difference in traffic flow. Traffic flow is still 
sometimes an issue but it’s very acceptable. We just hope that the Dillon Beach Resort will develop a traffic 
plan as well. 
 
Thanks again for your work. 
 
Bonnie Smetts  
  
 
Concerned Citizens of Dillon Beach 
P.O. Box 26 
Dillon Beach, CA 94929 
futureofdb@yahoo.com 



1

Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

From: Scott Miller <handmadeinmarin@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, July 23, 2020 10:58 AM
To: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal
Cc: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal
Subject: Re: Lawson's Landing

Yes, staff report, or anything they have submitted, especially pertaining to traffic The early morning (5am ’til after 7am)
traffic jams are getting a bit too common. This week was Saturday through Wednesday, with only minor back up today.
I’m hoping there will be some kind of enhanced management as part of this amendment.
During the last walk through there was talk about the free parking spaces opening at 8am, as opposed to sunrise. It
would be worth trying the same thing for paid day use.
The greatest traffic improvement, from a neighbor standpoint, was when vehicles were no longer allowed to arrive and
depart at all hours of the night.
When the Landing first re opened in late June the gate opened at 8am instead of 6 for about a week. There was still
back up, but listening to car doors slamming and electric boat pumps was more entertaining and less annoying 7 9am
than it is now 5 7am. The same goes for seeing people pee and flick their cigarettes on the ground.
It seems counter intuitive, but opening the gate later may actually help things. Quiet mornings would benefit visitors
staying in the campground as well, especially those along the road.
I’ll work on a “real” letter for the hearing, but please consider the concept in the meantime.
Thanks for all of your work on this project. Does it hold the record for longest running?
Scott

> On Jul 22, 2020, at 8:22 AM, Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal <Stephanie.Rexing@coastal.ca.gov> wrote:
>
> Hi Scott,
> By "stuff" do you mean the staff report? If so, that is not going to be ready for posting until this Friday.
>
> Let me know if you have further questions. Thanks!
>
> Original Message
> From: Scott Miller <handmadeinmarin@gmail.com>
> Sent: Tuesday, July 21, 2020 8:46 PM
> To: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal <Stephanie.Rexing@coastal.ca.gov>;
> Manna, Jeannine@Coastal <Jeannine.Manna@coastal.ca.gov>
> Subject: Lawson's Landing
>
> Hi Stephanie and Jeanine,
> Would it be possible to send me the “stuff” for the Landing?
> Thank you,
> Scott M.
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Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

From: Tom Flynn <tomflynn@sonic.net>
Sent: Wednesday, July 22, 2020 10:51 AM
To: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal; Manna, Jeannine@Coastal
Subject: Letter from neighbor on Cliff St. 
Attachments: Bill Bettinelli Emergency Lane 7.14.20.pdf

Hi Stephanie and Jeannine,

The letter attached is from a retired judge, mediator, arbitrator, and environmentalist who with his wife has a home on Cliff
Street north of the entrance gate at Lawsons Landing. The Marin County Fire Marshall has indicated that Cliff St. needs to be
fully accessible by a second means of access when traffic congestion occurs at the choke point between the red legged frog
pond fence and the higher elevation on the east side of the main entrance road. This congestion could occur in the event of
emergencies such as an earthquake, fire, tsunami or some violent occurrence where access on Dillon Beach Rd. would be cut
off.

In addition to the risks of matts failing and sliding out as described in the email from Lawson’s architect Bob Hayes yesterday,
we hope you are also aware that securely and properly placing those matts will take time. There can often be a scarcity of
time in the event of a sudden emergency. For these reasons, we do not expect that the matts you suggest will meet the Fire
Marshall’s requirement for all weather 30 ton capacity. As you probably recall, the Fire Marshall indicated that normally
he prefers a standard road for emergency lanes, but in this case he would be willing to compromise with a georgrid or turf
block. This geogrid or turf block would be planted with native vegetation and would function much the same as the habitat
immediately adjacent to it.

I would also appreciate speaking with you further about the Coastal Commission removing buildings from Lawsons
Amendment as a way to remedy the need for an Emergency Lane.

Thanks!
Tom







Meeting August 14, 2020 Agenda Item F9a 
Lawson’s Landing (A-2-MAR-08-028-A3) 

TRAFFIC AND CIRCULATION 
 

 
 
August 7, 2020 
 
Steve Padilla, Chair  
California Coastal Commission 
45 Fremont Street, Suite 2000 
San Francisco, CA 94105-5260 
 
Re: Lawson’s Landing CDP Amendment  A-2-MAR-08-028-A3 
 
Dear Chair Padilla and Commissioners, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the CDP Amendment. While the approved Traffic 
Management Plan has successfully addressed most issues, a single unresolved problem remains. We 
would like this solved as a part of the final approval of the project.  
 
Historically visitors came to Lawson’s Landing to harvest clams a few days a year during the “king tide” 
weekends. Over the past four years the Landing’s popularity as a prime clamming destination has grown 
exponentially. Now hundreds of people arrive in the early mornings and wait for the Landing to open at 
6am. What was once a minor disturbance to the local neighborhood three or four times in the summer has 
now extended to five or seven day stretches, often twice in a month for half the year. Long lines of parked 
cars in the southbound lanes of Beach Avenue and Cliff Street block access to homes and businesses. 
Visitors leave litter along the street and make noise that makes it impossible to sleep past 5am. 
 
The clammers start to arrive at 4:30am and line up in front of the Lawson’s Landing gatehouse. 
On busy days the line of parked cars stretches to the Dillon Beach General Store which is a half mile 
away. Many of the visitors are repeat Landing customers who know each other and come in large groups 
to maximize their collective harvest of clams. They travel from far distances and once they’re in line, they 
prepare for the day. They inflate rafts with electric air compressors, gather for tailgate breakfasts, and 
relieve themselves along the roadside. Residents are awakened by the noise and have limited access to 
their homes during this time. When the gatehouse opens at 6am the line slowly decreases, often taking 
until 7:30am for the last car to get in. The area along Beach Avenue and Cliff Street is left with litter and 
cigarette butts. Used hygiene products are found in the dunes. 
 
Concerned Citizens of Dillon Beach proposes that clamming traffic be limited until the applicant, staff 
and community work to mitigate the problem. The traffic back-up not only creates a disturbance in the 



community but also a safety issue with emergency services blocked to the adjoining neighborhood and 
the hundreds of guests at the Lawson’s Landing campground. We look forward to working to find a 
solution.  
 
Up until now Lawson’s Landing has done a great job implementing the Traffic Management Plan but the 
clamming back-ups do not meet its criteria. While we’ve always promoted more visitor-serving access 
through use of Sand Haul Road (currently judged infeasible), limits may be necessary to solve this 
problem. 
 
Thank you for your work on this project and the opportunity to comment.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Bonnie Smetts 
Concerned Citizens of Dillon Beach 
 
 
 
 



Clammers waiting to enter Lawson’s Landing, 4:30am to 7:30am



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
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Steve Padilla, Chair        FRI 9a 
California Coastal Commission      A-2-MAR-08-028-A2 
455 Market Street, Suite 228   Approve the amendment    
San Francisco, CA 94105      with conditions 
 
 
August 5, 2020 
 
Dear Chair Padilla and Commissioners, 
 
The Environmental Action Committee of West Marin is hopeful that your Commission can at 
this hearing finally close the long saga of the legalization of the Lawson's Landing campground 
and the protection of the rare, rich, vulnerable and beautiful dune-wetland system that surrounds 
it. We support staff’s recommendations, though we do suggest one small but important change.  
 
Your Commission gave staff very clear directions when the previous Amendment was denied in 
November 2017. Directly after the vote, Executive Director Ainsworth said,  “Staff would like 
some direction on where the Commission wants this going forward.” Then-Chair Bochco replied, 
“We want to stay out of ESHA. I’m serious….I think the issue is stay out of ESHA. Period.”  
This amendment, as conditioned by staff, does that.  Thanks to the hard work of staff and the 
cooperation of the Applicant, all structures are to be built in legally developed areas, as required 
by the 2011 CDP.  We agree with staff that the proposed EVA road through ESHA must be 
denied. 
 
Here are our comments and suggestions. 
 
The Emergency Vehicle Access (EVA) road should be denied.   
You have a letter from our attorney, Ralph Faust, explaining the legal position in detail, but to 
summarize his points: 

1. Putting an EVA through ESHA would violate the Coastal Act.  
2. The Marin County Fire Department does not have the authority to require an EVA for 

this project. 
3. There is no conflict between Coastal Act policies and therefore no ability to use the 

conflict resolution provision of the Coastal Act.  
4. If there were a conflict between Coastal Act policies that allowed the use of conflict 

resolution, destruction of ESHA would still not be allowed unless a detailed alternatives 
analysis found that the alternative requiring destruction of ESHA was the only feasible 
alternative and the alternative most protective of Coastal Resources.  No such analysis 
has been conducted and therefore no such finding has been made.  



	

	
Environmental	Action	Committee	of	West	Marin	
PO	Box	609,	Point	Reyes	Station,	CA	94956	

415-663-9312						|					admin@eacmarin.org					|					www.eacmarin.org		
	

 
We urge you to add a hard deadline for construction of the new wastewater system.  
The heart of the 2011 CDP--and the main impetus for the fifty-year effort to bring Lawson's 
Landing into compliance with State and County regulations--has been the desire to replace its 
167 bayside cesspools with a proper wastewater system.  The 2011 CDP did not actually solve 
the wastewater problem, however. It merely required the permittee to submit a Coastal 
Development Permit Amendment Application for the new wastewater treatment and disposal 
system “by July 13, 2012, or within such additional time the Executive Director may grant for 
good cause.”  In fact, it was 2015 before that amendment was filed.  And, after it and its 
successor were both rejected for proposing development in ESHA, it is only now, eight years 
late, that your Commission has a wastewater amendment that can, we hope, be approved.   
 
Nearly all of the Special Conditions in the 2011 CDP were delayed past the original deadline, 
some with and some without the ED’s approval.  The deadline for Special Conditions 2.C.1(a) 
and 2.C.2(a), however, was a firm deadline that required removal of the travel trailers which 
used the cesspools by July 13, 2016.  There was no allowance for extension, and the deadline 
was met.  
 
Unfortunately, Special Condition 7 of this permit requires the new wastewater collection, 
treatment and disposal system to be constructed by August 14, 2022, but allows the Executive 
Director to extend this deadline indefinitely “for good cause.”  Because delay has been a 
hallmark of this process, we believe that it is essential to set a hard deadline for completion of 
the new wastewater system. 
 
We urge you to adopt the following alternate wording for Special Condition 7 (our additions are 
underlined): 
 

Special Condition 7: 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL SYSTEM 
A. The Permittee shall construct the new wastewater collection, treatment and disposal 
system substantially consistent with that depicted on CSW ST2 Lawson’s Landing 
Composite Plan Design Development- Campground Area 6 Site Plans dated January 15, 
2020 and Questa Engineering Corp. Revised Wastewater Facilities Plan for Lawson’s 
Landing Dillon Beach, California, dated 
September 2018 Appendix E and Figure 7 (see Exhibit 3 for CDP Amendment Number A-
2-MAR-08-028-A3) by August 14, 2022. The Executive Director may extend this deadline 
until August 14, 2024 for good cause.” 
 
C. If the new wastewater collection, treatment and disposal system has not been 
constructed by August 14, 2022 or within additional time the Executive Director may 
grant for good cause August 14, 2024, the Applicant shall cease all uses that depend on 
the new wastewater collection, treatment and disposal system. 
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Lastly, we have become aware that the Applicant’s representative has been suggesting that the 
Environmental Action Committee of West Marin has agreed to some kind of deal that would 
allow the EVA to be approved.  This is untrue.  EAC has not offered, approved, or seen any 
“deal” that would allow the destruction of ESHA by the EVA.  We have asked the Applicant’s 
representative not to repeat this erroneous claim.  
 
We urge you to approve this Amendment, as conditioned by staff and with the addition of a 
definite deadline for completion of the wastewater system.  
 
As this decades-long effort comes to a conclusion, we want to acknowledge the efforts the 
applicants have made to adjust their desires to the requirements of the Coastal Act. We deeply 
appreciate the hard work staff has put into this permit application over the years, and we thank 
you, Commissioners, for your devotion to the Coastal Act and for your concern for the precious 
and dwindling natural resources of California’s coast. 
 
Sincerely,  

 
Catherine Caufield 
cc: John Ainsworth, Executive Director 
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Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

From: Catherine Caufield <visionroad@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, September 1, 2020 12:44 PM
To: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal
Cc: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal
Subject: Condition Compliance
Attachments: LL Compliance 9.1.2020.xlsx

Dear Stephanie,   

In reviewing the current state of compliance by Lawson's Landing with the special conditions of the 2011 CDP, I have 
identified a number of conditions that it seems have not yet been satisfied.  Perhaps I are not aware of conditions having 
been met or have wrongly assumed that some conditions have been met which have not been. If this is the case, I would 
be very grateful if you could correct me.   

Most of the conditions in the CDP were to have been met within six months of the July 13, 2011 CDP.  Some, but not all, 
were allowed to be extended with the approval of the Executive Director.  In quite a few instances, however, the 
applicants ignored deadlines without requesting an extension. Because of the long history of delays on this project, we 
ask that you attach hard deadlines for each of the remaining conditions.  We have suggested such deadlines in this 
spreadsheet.  

I would be happy to talk with you about this and to answer any questions you may have, and also grateful to be 
informed of any errors I have made.  

Thank you again for your continued efforts to bring this important project to a satisfactory conclusion. 

 Catherine 



SC # ACTION /PLAN DUE DATE Suggested Revisions
From July 13, 2011

1D
remove all unpermitted development in Areas 1-
5 no deadline

six months or by August 14, 
2021 with approval of ED

2A Authorized Development and Final Revised Plans

6 months "or within such 
additional time as the 
Executive Director may 
grant for good cause"

six months or by August 14, 
2021 with approval of ED

3A Camping Management and Ops Plan 6 months or ED extension

interim plan in operation, but 
needs to be updated within six 
months

7A
Construction of Wastewater Treatment and 
Disposal System 

July 13, 2014; can be 
extended to July 13, 2016 
for good cause

August 14, 2022 or Aug 14, 
2024 with permission of ED

Revised 7C

If the new wastewater system is not in place by 
August 14, 2022,  the Applicant shall cease all 
uses that depend on the new wastewater 
system.

August 22, 2022 or Aug 14, 
2024 with permission of ED

8A Septic Inspection Plan 60 days or ED extension
60 days or by August 14, 
2021 with approval of ED

9 Utilities and Facilities Plan one year or ED extension
six months or by August 14, 
2022 with approval of ED

10 Approval from other State Agencies 6 months or ED extension
6 months; Marin County still 
needed  

14 Lighting Plan 6 months or ED extension
six months or by August 14, 
2021 with approval of ED

19 Generic Deed Restriction 6 months or ED extension Within 6 months, no extension

20 Landscaping Plan 6 months or ED extension
six months or by August 14, 
2021 with approval of ED

21.C Future Development Restriction 6 months or ED extension six months

26 Drainage Plan 6 months or ED extension
six months or by August 14, 
2021 with approval of ED

27 Grading Plan 6 months or ED extension
six months or by August 14, 
2021 with approval of ED

28 Stormwater Management Plan 6 months or ED extension
six months or by August 14, 
2021 with approval of ED

LAWSON"S LANDING COMPLIANCE



Scott Miller
P.O. Box 145
Dillon Beach, CA.  94929
(707) 878-2167                  

August 6, 2020

California Coastal Commission
455 Market Street, Suite 228 
San Francisco, CA 94105

Re: Application #A-2-MAR-08-028-A3 
(Lawson’s Landing) 

Dear Staff and Commissioners,

Forward:
COVID-19 at the Landing:

There are three hospitality industries in Dillon Beach. Lawson's Landing, Dillon Beach 
Resort (DBR), and Short Term Rental houses (STR's).  Lawson's Landing has done by far the 
best job dealing with the pandemic.  When things were ordered to close, they closed.  When 
they were allowed to reopen, they reopened in a responsible and safe manner.  The same can 
not be said for Dillon Beach Resort or Short Term Rentals. 

Unlike DBR and STR's, the Landing didn't "cheat".  There were no RV's coming out to 
"shelter" because they were mysteriously "displaced" for the weekend.  They were not letting 
people in "with a note from a doctor" like the other businesses.  Dr. Matt Willis ordered 
businesses to close and they closed.  

The behavior of DBR and STR owners has been beyond disappointing.  It's been 
shameful.  But not Lawson's Landing.  They have been the honest operator in a sea of 
delinquents.  This may not be directly part of the CDP Amendment, but it's important to note. 
It speaks to character.  It speaks to honesty and integrity.  

Clarification:
Lawson's Landing vs. Legal Team:
The above observation is in no way connected to the "legal team".  In fact they are polar 
opposites.  That's why this process has been such a long, drawn out mess.  In the early phases 
of the EIR/Master Plan at the County level, the Lawson's legal team decided to frame everything 
as "us against them", "you're either with us or against us".   This tactic divided our community 
and pitted neighbor against neighbor.  It was ugly.  Really ugly.  It also silenced any kind of open 
dialogue between stakeholders.  There was no such thing as a common goal or common good.  
This attitude has carried all the way through to the hearing in 2017 with the infamous "secret 
agent" tirade delivered by Mr. Flynn, followed by another outburst at the walkthrough with 
Commissioner Peskin (Sorry, I didn't know asking about the yellow would be so upsetting).

Lawson's Landing is an ethical, honest, family owned-and-operated business 
represented by an arrogant, bombastic, shove-it-through, facts-be-damned legal team.  I can 
separate the two in my day-to-day personal life.  Unfortunately I don't think it's possible to 
separate the two when passing judgement on a plan submitted by the legal team.  I wish you 
luck.  

Agenda Item F9a



Progress Report (Traffic):
There have been many improvements at Lawson's Landing in the 9 years since the 

original CDP was approved, some of them traffic-related.
Quiet time:  This is by far the greatest improvement of all.  Pre-CDP, there were no open/
closed hours.  Campers would come roaring through the town at all hours of the night.  A 40 foot 
RV towing a boat at 3am can be a bit disrupting.  That doesn't happen anymore.
No ORV's:  Leading up to 2011, ORV's ("macho buggies") had begun to proliferate at an 
alarming rate, and along with them a dramatic increase in "recreational driving" (driving back 
and forth on Cliff St. all day).  While relatively small in size, these vehicles accounted for a large 
number of vehicle trips, all of them completely unnecessary. Now there are no ORV's driving 
around, and it is only occasionally that a "stinky-cart" (gas powered golf cart) escapes through 
the gate. 
Walking and Biking:  People actually walk and ride bikes on Cliff St. now.  When my future 
wife and I moved to Dillon Beach, nobody walked.  Nobody biked.  It was so rare we would 
make an announcement,"Bicycle!" or,"Pedestrian!" or my favorite, "Pedesting is occurring!".  
Now it's a regular feature, and we love that.  
Camping Reservations:  The evolving reservation system is constantly improving.  Idling 
RV's backed up into the neighborhood are less frequent and shorter in duration, but they do still 
occur.  Justin has put a lot of time and effort into this and while it may not be perfect, it is vastly 
improved.  I am optimistic that if this effort continues the improvement will continue.
Day use Reservations:  This system is less mature, but with more effort and some "growing 
pains"  it might improve as well.  Early morning back-ups have become completely ridiculous 
and all too common, but hopefully a solution will be created.  Pronto.

Comments:
Early Morning Backups:  The solution is NOT to open the gate earlier. It may actually be to 
open later.  Currently the gate opens at 6am and the line starts forming between 4:30 and 5.  If 
the gate opened at 5, they would line up at 4.  Eventually we would be back to the bad-old-days 
with the gate open all hours.  Door slams, electric boat pumps, and people peeing, pooping, and 
flicking ciggy butts are annoying at 5am.  They would be more annoying at 4am.  There are 
several lower-cost visitor-serving accommodations along Cliff St. that don't necessarily enjoy the 
early morning S**t Show either.  Visitors inside the gate enjoy peace and quiet until much later 
than visitors outside the gate.  The Show doesn't happen every day.  Lately it's been 5 days in a 
row around the full moon and the new moon (only10 days per month).  exhibit A
Electric Cart Rentals:  Electric is way better than gas, but much like ORV's in the past they 
are going to add congestion on Cliff Street if they are allowed to do laps outside the 
campground.  People are already walking and biking so much more than before that these don't 
seem necessary.  Plus they take up valuable space in area 6.
Traffic Management Plan:  I can't figure out the day-use limit.  It's 100 per day except for 
when it's not 100 per day?  That's complicated (and ripe for exploitation).
Sand Haul Road:  According to the fire department it's a fully functioning emergency exit.  
Movie theaters have doors along the sides that are emergency exits.  The cool thing is, they are 
also used for non-emergency exits.  This greatly improves the flow of people because they don't 
all have to come out through the line-up of people waiting to get in.  As I mentioned at the 
November 2017 hearing, we could try this out for zero cost ("See my vest?").  The emergency 
exit is already there.  There is nothing to lose by trying.  exhibit B 

Thank you for your time and patience.
Sincerely, Scott Miller



 
6:48 AM 
0.3 miles from entrance,
48 minutes after the gate opens

5:25 AM 
0.2 miles from entrance,
35 minutes before the gate opens 

5:33 AM
0.25 miles from entrance,
27 Minutes before the gate opens 

Early Morning S**t Show

Pictures not all from the same day (July and August)

exhibit A



Sand Haul Road at the Apollo

S.H.R S.H.R

These customers have to exit through the entrance.

8/2/2020
Would you like to walk or ride a bike to the store?

exhibit B



Ralph	Faust	
Consulting	Attorney	

641	Paddlewheel	Court	
Roseville,	CA	95747	
916-771-3256	

ralph.faust@gmail.com	
	

August	7,	2020	
	

Steve	Padilla,	Chair	
California	Coastal	Commission	
455	Market	Street,	Suite	228	
San	Francisco,	CA	94105	
	
	 	 Re:	Lawson’s	Landing	Inc.:	#A-2-MAR-08-028-A2.	(FRI	9a)	
	
Dear	Chair	Padilla	and	Coastal	Commissioners:	
	
I	write	on	behalf	of	the	Environmental	Action	Committee	of	West	Marin	
(EAC)	to	support	your	staff’s	recommendation	for	approval	with	
conditions	of	the	requested	coastal	development	permit	amendment	for	
Lawson’s	Landing	(A-2-MAR-08-028-A3;	FRI	9	(a)).	The	most	important	
parts	of	this	proposed	development	will	complete	the	Commission’s	
direction	provided	in	the	conditions	of	the	Lawson’s	2011	coastal	
development	permit,	for	installation	of	a	wastewater	treatment	system	
that,	when	operational,	will	finally	end	more	than	fifty	years	of	ocean	
pollution	at	the	site.	As	conditioned	by	staff,	the	Applicant’s	proposal	is	
unobjectionable.	
	
The	only	matter	of	contention	is	the	Applicant’s	proposal	to	construct	an	
Emergency	Vehicle	Access	(EVA)	road.	As	proposed	the	EVA	road	would	
cut	directly	through	ESHA	that	this	Commission	in	its	previous	actions	
has	directed	be	preserved	and	restored.	Commission	staff	recommends	
that	the	EVA	road	be	eliminated	from	the	proposal,	and	EAC	supports	
that	recommendation.	
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1. The	Coastal	Act	requires	protection	of	ESHA.	
	

Public	Resources	Code	§	30240	(a)	provides:	
	

“Environmentally	sensitive	habitat	areas	shall	be	protected	
against	any	significant	disruption	of	habitat	values,	and	only	
uses	dependent	on	those	resources	shall	be	allowed	within	
those	areas”.	
	

As	the	staff	report	makes	clear,	the	area	through	which	the	EVA	road	is	
proposed	is	ESHA.		Although	the	Applicant	continues	to	contest	that	
conclusion,	the	staff	had	completed	their	research	and	reached	that	
conclusion	prior	to	the	Commission’s	denial	of	the	Applicant’s	previous	
proposed	coastal	development	permit	amendment	in	2017,	and	the	
Commission	affirmed	that	conclusion	when	it	denied	that	proposal.	
Because	that	area	is	ESHA,	and	the	proposed	EVA	road	is	not	a	use	
dependent	upon	the	ESHA	resources,	the	road	cannot	be	approved	
consistent	with	§30240.	
	

2. The	Fire	Marshal	has	not	required	a	road	through	ESHA.	
	
The	Applicant	suggests	that	the	EVA	road	has	been	“required”	by	the	
County	Fire	Marshal,	Scott	Alber.	This	is	simply	not	the	case;	no	such	
requirement	has	been	imposed.	Mr.	Alber	stated,	in	a	June	3	
communication	to	staff,	that	“there	are	very	few	issues	that	will	compel	
us	to	categorically	“deny”	a	permit	being	issued.	Also,	there	are	very	few	
projects	that	meet	all	code	requirements,	so	we	are	constantly	seeking	
compromise	and	alternative	solutions	to	achieve	the	intent	of	the	Code.”	
Later	in	that	communication	Mr.	Alber	concludes,	in	bold,	“we	are	
certainly	open	to	other	proposals/compromises	that	will	satisfy	all.”	
	

3. The	Fire	Department	does	not	have	the	authority	to	
require	this	EVA	road	through	ESHA.	

	
Nor	does	it	appear	that	the	Department	could	require	an	EVA	road	in	
that	location	at	this	time.	The	Fire	Department’s	review	is	based	upon	
the	development	proposed	in	this	amendment	and	that	development	
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does	not	provide	a	nexus	for	such	a	requirement.	The	project	
description	provides	for:	
	

“…construction	of	a	wastewater	management	system	
(including	collection,	treatment,	and	dispersal	facilities);	
improvements	to	the	entrance,	roadway	and	parking	
facilities,	including	landscaping,	five	public	parking	spaces	
outside	the	entry	gate,	and	construction	of	storage	and	
office	buildings;	relocation	of	a	fuel	bunker;	seasonal	food	
truck	usage;	installation	of	emergency	boat	storage;	
construction	of	new	agricultural	barn;	pier	removal,	and	
habitat	restoration.”	

	
Nothing	in	this	project	description	invokes	a	hazard	or	creates	the	
potential	for	a	requirement	for	an	EVA	road	through	ESHA.	Staff’s	
evaluation	of	this	project	description	found	it	to	be,	as	conditioned,	
consistent	with	the	hazards	policies	of	the	Coastal	Act,	as	well	as	with	
the	approved	Hazard	Response	Plan.	The	development	proposed	in	this	
amendment	does	not	provide	a	basis	for	the	Fire	Department	to	require	
the	EVA	road	through	ESHA.	
	

4. The	safety	of	recreational	visitors	to	Lawson’s	Landing	
does	not	depend	upon	the	existence	of	this	short	EVA	road.	

	
Neither	the	original	development	approved	by	the	Commission	in	2011	
nor	the	development	proposed	in	the	present	amendment	provide	a	
nexus	for	a	requirement	that	the	EVA	road	be	constructed	through	the	
ESHA	where	it	is	presently	proposed.	The	Commission’s	2011	coastal	
development	permit	for	the	principal	Lawson	recreational	development	
required	the	preparation	and	approval	of	both	a	Traffic	Management	
Plan	and	a	Hazard	Response	Plan.	Both	have	been	prepared	and	
approved	as	required.	The	designated	emergency	exit	under	these	plans	
is	Sand	Haul	Road,	which	is	the	secondary	access	necessary	in	case	the	
principal	egress	route	past	the	entry	gate	is	blocked.	
	
No	safety	requirement	for	the	protection	of	recreational	visitors	in	
either	of	these	plans	relies	upon	an	EVA	road	through	the	ESHA	in	Area	
6.	Nor	would	the	existence	of	the	EVA	road	change	the	exit	route	for	
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anyone	in	the	lower	recreational	areas	of	Lawson’s	Landing.	If	for	some	
reason	the	primary	exit	road	was	blocked	near	the	entrance	gate,	as	
suggested	by	the	Applicant,	or	if	it	were	blocked	further	north,	for	
example	where	Cliff	St.	crosses	the	creek,	campers	would	still	exit	on	
Sand	Haul	Road,	and	never	reach	the	area	of	the	proposed	EVA	road.	
Hence,	none	of	that	prior	development	approved	by	the	Commission	in	
2011	provides	a	nexus	for	a	requirement	by	the	Department	for	an	EVA	
road	in	that	location;	nor	does	it	create	a	predicate	for	approval	by	the	
Commission	now	of	the	EVA	road	through	the	ESHA	as	proposed	in	this	
amendment.	All	of	the	hazards	identified	by	the	Applicant	in	their	
approved	Hazard	Response	Plan	are	mitigated	without	regard	to	an	EVA	
road	through	the	ESHA.	Implementation	of	that	approved	plan	provides	
complete	mitigation	for	the	hazards	identified	in	the	2011	approved	
Lawson’s	development.	
	
The	only	other	Lawson	development	that	could	provide	such	a	nexus	for	
the	EVA	road	is	the	development	proposed	in	this	amendment	itself.	Yet	
as	previously	discussed,	nothing	in	the	project	description	for	the	
proposed	development	provides	any	predicate	for	a	requirement	that	
the	EVA	road	be	constructed.	Hazards	requiring	an	EVA	road	through	
ESHA	simply	are	not	created	by	this	proposed	development.		And	if	for	
some	reason,	any	particular	development	proposed	in	this	amendment,	
the	construction	of	a	building	for	storage	and	office	uses	for	example,	is	
thought	by	the	Commission	to	create	the	nexus	for	approval	of	the	EVA	
road	through	ESHA,	the	solution	is	not	to	approve	the	destruction	of	
ESHA	but	rather	to	deny	that	particular	proposed	development.	Neither	
the	proposed	Lawson	development	nor	the	EVA	road	provide	a	legal	
basis	for	development	in	ESHA	under	Coastal	Act	§	30240.	Staff	is	
absolutely	correct	on	this	point.	To	summarize,	neither	the	Commission	
nor	the	Fire	Department	has	the	authority,	based	upon	the	development	
proposed	in	this	amendment,	to	require	the	EVA	road	through	the	
ESHA.	If	the	Commission	disagrees,	it	should	simply	not	approve	the	
portion	of	the	development	proposed	in	the	amendment	that	provides	
the	suggested	nexus	for	the	authority	to	approve	the	road.	PRC	§	30240	
clearly	provides	no	other	legal	alternative	for	the	Commission.	
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5. If	the	County	thinks	that	there	is	a	community	benefit	for	
an	additional	EVA	road,	it	should	be	the	applicant	for	that	
project.	

	
We	recognize	however,	that	there	may	be	a	potential	benefit	for	the	Fire	
Department	and	the	County	in	the	proposal	for	an	EVA	road	somewhere	
in	this	area.	That	benefit	is	principally	to	the	community	of	Dillon	Beach	
“as	a	whole”,	to	use	Mr.	Alber’s	words,	rather	than	in	relation	to	the	
particular	Lawson	development.	[See	Commission	Correspondence.pdf,	
p.24].	If	one	hypothesizes	the	975-year	tsunami	discussed	in	the	staff	
report	(p.	70),	then	the	EVA	road	might	arguably	serve	as	a	potential	
secondary	egress	connecting	route	from	Dillon	Beach,	connecting	Bay	
Drive	to	Sand	Haul	Road.	This	hypothetical	also	presupposes	that	the	
tsunami	would	overwhelm	the	road	near	the	Lawson	gatehouse,	yet	not	
close	Cliff	Drive	south	of	Dillon	Beach	where	it	crosses	the	creek.	It	also	
presupposes	that	residents	of	Dillon	Beach	would	not	be	able	simply	to	
exit	on	Dillon	Beach	Road,	seemingly	on	higher	ground	throughout	than	
Cliff	Drive.	But	whether	this	secondary	exit	route	is	necessary	or	
desirable,	and	whether	it	is	the	best	of	whatever	alternatives	might	exist	
for	such	a	secondary	route,	is	far	beyond	the	scope	of	the	development	
proposal	before	the	Commission.	No	such	analysis	has	been	done.	But	
all	of	these	decisions	are	properly	County	decisions,	and	it	would	be	for	
the	County,	not	the	Lawson’s	to	best	evaluate	the	various	alternatives	
and	to	initiate	such	a	project.	No	potential	benefit	to	Dillon	Beach	
changes	the	analysis	for	this	amendment.	The	proposed	EVA	road	
through	ESHA	is	not	permitted	under	the	Coastal	Act	and	cannot	be	
approved	in	this	amendment	consistent	with	PRC	§	30240.	
	

6. Conflict	resolution	cannot	be	used	to	approve	this	EVA	
road	because	the	proposed	development	does	not	present	
a	conflict	between	Coastal	Act	policies	and	because	an	
alternatives	analysis	has	not	been	conducted.	

	
Even	if	the	Commission	were	to	consider	that	the	EVA	road	in	this	
location	might	be	approved	utilizing	conflict	resolution	under	PRC	§	
30007.5,	the	discussion	above	makes	it	clear	that	it	cannot	be	approved	
at	this	time	in	this	manner.	First,	as	the	staff	report	demonstrates,	the	
proposed	EVA	road	is	inconsistent	with	the	provisions	of	PRC	§	30240	
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and	cannot	be	approved	consistent	with	the	Coastal	Act.	Although	in	
some	communications	the	Applicant	continues	to	contest	the	
determination	of	the	Commission	that	the	area	is	ESHA,	the	staff	report	
is	also	completely	clear	that	this	determination	was	made	by	the	staff	
prior	to	the	hearing	on	the	proposed	amendment	to	the	Applicant’s	CDP	
in	2017,	and	was	affirmed	by	the	Commission	when	it	denied	that	
amendment	proposal.	The	Applicant	did	not	contest	the	legality	of	that	
determination.	Thus,	the	only	other	possible	means	of	Commission	
approval	of	such	a	road	would	be	to	utilize	the	conflict	resolution	
provisions	of	the	Act.	
	
Coastal	Act	§	30007.5	provides	that	when	a	proposed	development	
raises	a	conflict	between	two	separate	policies	of	the	law,	the	
Commission	may	resolve	that	conflict	in	the	manner	most	protective	of	
significant	coastal	resources.	Although	the	Applicant	has	not	specifically	
raised	that	possibility	we	comment	upon	it	here	to	make	clear	that	this	
possibility	does	not	provide	a	legal	basis	for	approval	in	this	instance.	
	
There	is	no	actual	conflict	among	Coastal	Act	policies.	The	most	likely	
Chapter	3	policy	that	might	be	suggested	to	be	in	conflict	with		
§	30240	is	§	30253	(1)	which	requires	that	new	development	“minimize	
risks	to	life	and	property	in	areas	of	high	geologic,	flood,	and	fire	
hazard”.	But	there	is	no	conflict	between	those	policies.	As	previously	
discussed,	no	part	of	the	proposed	development	creates	a	hazard	that	
invokes	§	30253	in	a	manner	that	would	require	the	EVA	road.	Just	as	
there	is	no	nexus	in	the	proposed	development	for	the	Fire	Department	
requirement,	there	is	no	nexus	in	the	proposed	development	for	the	
Commission	to	invoke	§	30253.	If	there	is	any	element	of	the	proposed	
development	that	is	in	conflict	with	§	30253	and	would	require	the	EVA	
road	through	the	ESHA,	the	Commission	should	simply	deny	that	
portion	of	the	proposed	development.	
	
Further,	as	the	staff	report	makes	clear,	there	has	not	been	a	proper	
alternatives	analysis.	The	“potential	proposals/compromises”	that	
might	“satisfy	all”,	per	Mr.	Alber’s	email,	have	not	yet	been	explored.	
Staff	reports	that	it	discussed	“a	series	of	potential	options	and	
alternatives”	with	the	Applicant	but	that	all	of	these	were	rejected	by	
the	Applicant	for	various	reasons.	The	staff	report	is	not	clear	as	to	
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whether	staff	discussed	any	of	these	options	with	the	Fire	Department,	
and	the	staff	report	does	not	indicate	what	these	options	may	be,	or	why	
they	were	rejected	by	the	Applicant.	To	the	extent	that	the	Applicant	
previously	has	discussed	options	to	its	proposal,	it	has	done	so	based	
upon	the	assumption	that	the	EVA	road	will	bisect	the	ESHA.	Every	
option	reconfigures	its	desired	development	and	finds	the	
reconfiguration	wanting.	Underlying	the	analysis	of	every	option	is	the	
assumption	that	all	of	the	proposed	development	is	so	important	that	it	
must	take	precedence	over	the	existence	of	the	ESHA.	But	in	the	
analytical	framework	of	the	Coastal	Act,	this	is	the	wrong	underlying	
assumption.	Under	the	Coastal	Act,	conservation	of	ESHA	comes	first;	
permitted	development	is	subordinate	to	preservation	of	the	ESHA.		
	
Thus,	because	there	is	not	a	conflict	between	Coastal	Act	policies	(the	
EVA	road	is	not	required	to	be	approved	in	order	to	fulfill	or	satisfy	a	
Coastal	Act	policy,	and	there	is	no	nexus	between	the	development	
under	consideration	and	a	hazard	requiring	the	EVA	road)	and	because	
there	has	not	been	a	proper	alternatives	analysis,	(either	of	other	
possible	ways	to	satisfy	the	Fire	Department’s	concern,	or	of	the	
configuration	of	the	Applicant’s	proposed	development),	the	
Commission	cannot	find	that	there	is	a	conflict	between	Coastal	Act	
policies	and	resolve	that	conflict	in	favor	of	approval	of	the	EVA	road.		
	
For	all	of	these	reasons	the	Commission	should	approve	the	staff	report,	
and	approve	the	proposed	development	with	the	exception	of	the	
proposed	EVA	road,	which	must	be	denied.	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Sincerely,	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 [Original	signed	by]	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Ralph	Faust	
	
CC:		 Coastal	Commissioners	
	 John	Ainsworth,	Executive	Director	



Steve Padilla, Chair  
455 Market Street, Suite 228  
San Francisco, CA 94105  
California Coastal Commission 

FRI 9A 
A-2-MAR-08-028-A2 
Approve the amendment  
with conditions 

 
August 6, 2020 
 
Dear Chair Padilla and Commissioners, 
 
Over the last 11 years I have followed the Commission’s proceedings to preserve the coastal 
dunes habitat at the Lawson’s Landing facility on Tomales Bay and to resolve enforcement of 
long-standing unpermitted development at that location.  The Commission has repeatedly 
made clear that no development can be permitted in ESHA beyond what was approved in 2011. 
 
The staff report for the Amendment application recommends approval of the Amendment with 
the condition that the Emergency Vehicle Access road proposed by the applicant in the ESHA of 
Area 6 is prohibited.   
 
I support the staff report recommendation. I also support EAC’s proposed hard deadline for 
completion of the wastewater system, which is at the heart of this amendment and of the entire 
process. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Bridger Mitchell 
P.O. Box 31 
Inverness, CA 94937 
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Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

From: Marquez, Maria Elena@Coastal
Sent: Wednesday, July 29, 2020 9:07 AM
To: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal; Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal
Subject: Fw: Public Hearing Permit No. A-2-MAR-08-028-A3 (Lawson's Landing Inc.) 

Hi  
 
here is this email for Lawson 
 
Maria Elena 
 

From: Mary Zook <mezook916@gmail.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, July 28, 2020 2:31 PM 
To: NorthCentralCoast@Coastal <NorthCentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov> 
Subject: Public Hearing Permit No. A‐2‐MAR‐08‐028‐A3 (Lawson's Landing Inc.)  
  
Dear Sir or Madam, 
 
We are writing in support of any and all of the applications numbered 1‐8 proffered by Lawson’s Landing. This place 
needs to remain open providing recreational opportunities to families. There are fewer and fewer places in our world 
where working class families can vacation. Please work to ensure that this family owned business can continue providing 
outdoor access at a feasible price.  
 
Sincerely, 
David and Mary Zook 
6240 Jansen Dr 
Sacramento, CA 95824 
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Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

From: Marquez, Maria Elena@Coastal
Sent: Thursday, August 13, 2020 10:32 AM
To: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal; Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal
Subject: Fw: Permit No. A-2MAR-08-028-A3 (Lawson's Landing Inc., Dillon Beach, Marin County

Hi 
 
here is the following for Lawson's 
 

From: THPO@gratonrancheria.com <THPO@gratonrancheria.com> 
Sent: Thursday, August 13, 2020 9:00 AM 
To: NorthCentralCoast@Coastal <NorthCentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov> 
Subject: Permit No. A‐2MAR‐08‐028‐A3 (Lawson's Landing Inc., Dillon Beach, Marin County  
  
Good morning, 
  
The Federated Indians of Graton Rancheria has received your public hearing notice for the Lawson’s Landing 
Facility project located at 137 Marine View Dr., south of Dillon Beach. The Tribe has reviewed the information 
and would like to let you know that there are Tribal Cutlural Resources in the area. Please let us know if you 
have any questions.  
  
Thank you,  
  
Buffy McQuillen 
Tribal Heritage Preservation Officer (THPO) 
Native American Graves Protection and Repatriation Act (NAGPRA) 
Office: 707.566.2288; ext. 137 
Cell: 707.318.0485 
FAX: 707.566.2291 
  
  
Hector Garcia 
THPO Administrative Assistant II 
Federated Indians of Graton Rancheria 
6400 Redwood Drive, Suite 300 
Rohnert Park, CA 94928 
Office: 707.566.2288, ext. 138 
Fax: 707.588‐9809 
Email: hgarcia@gratonrancheria.com 
www.gratonrancheria.com  
  
 please consider our environment before printing this email. 
  
Federated Indians of Graton Rancheria and Tribal TANF of Sonoma & Marin - Proprietary and Confidential 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:  This transmittal is a confidential communication or may otherwise be privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are 
hereby notified that you have received this transmittal in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this transmittal is strictly prohibited.  If 
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Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

From: Marquez, Maria Elena@Coastal
Sent: Monday, August 17, 2020 9:10 AM
To: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal; Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal
Subject: Fw: Lawson's landing Hearing Permit A-2-Mar-08-028-A3

Good morning  
 
here is this email for Lawson's  
 

From: Lloyd Kahn <lloyd@shelterpub.com> 
Sent: Thursday, August 13, 2020 3:06 PM 
To: NorthCentralCoast@Coastal <NorthCentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov> 
Subject: Lawson's landing Hearing Permit A‐2‐Mar‐08‐028‐A3  
  
Dear Coastal Commission,  
 
I fully support the application for improvements and changes at Lawson’s landing. It’s a good operation, as a place for 
fishing, clamming. boating, kayaking, and camping. For 100 years, it’s been a place that people from inland areas such as 
the Sacramento Valley can visit, escape the summer heat, and participate in many outdoor activities.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
Lloyd Kahn 
Editor 
Shelter Publications, Inc. 
PO Box 279 
Bolinas, California 94924 
415-868-0280 
 
Lloyd’s Blog: www.lloydkahn.com 
www.instagram.com/lloyd.kahn 
www.twitter.com/lloydkahn 
Shelter's Website: www.shelterpub.com 
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California Coastal Commission
45 Freemont Street, Suite 2000
San Francisco, CA 94105-2219

TO WHOM !T MAY CONCERN:

Concerning Permit No. A-2-MAR-08-028-A3 (Lawson's Landing inc., Dillon
Beach, Marin Co.)

My grandfather, William Mey.er, built a summer home in 1942 at Dillon Beach,
which lasted through the 20tn century and beyond. Also at Dillon Beach, my
parents remodeled a beautiful view home, where I grew up. Later studying the
local natura! setting sciences at the college, and while ultimately sharing my life
with children, grandchildren and friends, I even published articles in national
magazines on the area.

I can understand treatment and road improvements in peirs and with some
parking areas. Originally the area was planned as natural space. I would hate to
see it cluttered with barns, storage facilities, etc. How well I remember my
adventures there as a child and young man. I hope that there not be a premium
of unsightly intrusion.

Sincerely,

S.Roe
1,-(,3,<

3325 Saint Moritz Court
Redding, CA 96002

i-il
Lnl D
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Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal

From: Rexing, Stephanie@Coastal
Sent: Thursday, August 20, 2020 5:21 PM
To: Dobri.Tutov@slc.ca.gov
Cc: Manna, Jeannine@Coastal
Subject: RE: Public Comment on August 2020 Agenda Item Friday 9a - Permit No. A-2-MAR-08-028-A3 

(Lawson’s Landing Inc., Dillon Beach, Marin Co.)

Hi Dobri, 
 
Thanks for writing regarding this.  As of right now we have our standard “Other State Agency Approvals” 
condition.  Please see Exhibit 19 of our posted exhibits (https://documents.coastal.ca.gov/reports/2020/8/F9a/F9a‐9‐
2020‐exhibits.pdf), condition #10 which reads: 
 
WITHIN SIX MONTHS OF COMMISSION APPROVAL OF THIS COASTAL DEVELOPMENT PERMIT, or within such additional 
time as the Executive Director may grant for good cause, the Permittee shall provide to the Executive Director a copy of 
a permit issued by: (a) the State Lands Commission; (b) the Regional Water Quality Control Board; and (c) the Housing 
Community and Development Commission, or letter of permission, or evidence that no permit or permission is required. 
The applicant shall inform the Executive Director of any changes to the project required by the State Lands Commission; 
(b) the Regional Water Quality Control Board; and (c) the Housing Community and Development Commission, Such 
changes shall not be incorporated into the project until the applicant obtains a Commission amendment to this coastal 
development permit, unless the Executive Director determines that no amendment is legally required.   
 
The best contact for the Lawsons is their agent, Tom Flynn:  tomflynn@sonic.net, and phone: 415‐328‐8636. 
 
Let us know if you would like to discuss further.  Thanks!  
Stephanie 
 
 

From: Tutov, Dobri@SLC <Dobri.Tutov@slc.ca.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, August 20, 2020 3:22 PM 
To: NorthCentralCoast@Coastal <NorthCentralCoast@coastal.ca.gov> 
Subject: Public Comment on August 2020 Agenda Item Friday 9a ‐ Permit No. A‐2‐MAR‐08‐028‐A3 (Lawson’s Landing 
Inc., Dillon Beach, Marin Co.)  
  
Hello, 
  
My name is Dobri Tutov with the State Lands Commission and I’m contacting you about Lawson Landing Inc's permit 
amendment application.  
The applicant’s pier removal falls under State Land’s Lease 6978 for a commercial marina with 35 moorings, 12 floats 
(side ties) and 23 poles (single tie), seawall, pier, and boat launching facility. 
  
This means that the applicant will need SLC authorization and apply for a lease amendment or a new lease. SLC staff will 
notify Lawson Landing Inc of the need for a lease application, but would appreciate conditions in the future CDP permit, 
requiring SLC authorization. 
  
Could you please share Lawson Landing Inc's contact information (email address), so we can also send communication 
electronically? 
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